
Minutes of the Veneta Park Board 
March 6, 2013           Page 1 

 

Minutes of the Veneta Park Board 
March 6, 2013 

 
Board Members  
Present: Cal Beach, Braeden Cornelius, Cathy Coulson Keegan, Barb Nelson, Dennis Paronto, and Marie 

Pickett 
 
Others: Ric Ingham, City Administrator, Kay Bork, Community Development Director; Brittany Boothe, City 

Council Liaison; and Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder  
  
Chair Barb Nelson opened the meeting at 4:35 p.m. 
 
I. Public Comment 
 None 
 
II. Approve Minutes for February 6, 2013  

 
Dennis motioned to approve the February 6, 2013 minutes, Marie seconded, all approved. 

 
III. Old Business/Status of: 

1. None  
  

IV. New Business – 
1. Public Works Report 

Ric said the surveillance cameras have been installed at Territorial Park, the DVR is set up at 
the fire station and now we’re waiting for a final internet connection.  Ric said Kyle and Kip 
conducted interviews and filled a full time Utility Worker I position which is mostly dedicated to 
landscaping and maintenance of city property including parks. 
 
In response to a question from Barb, Ric said the surveillance cameras are set up with a web 
interface, monitor and DVR.  Public safety officials will be able to view the footage from their 
office which will require them to go on line.  He said they can download the time period from 
the fire station and copy to a thumb drive to use for evidence. 

  
2. Park Board Financials  

Ric provided Board members with the Park Board budget summary and said Shauna will work 
on getting these to the Board on a consistent basis.  Ric said page one of the report provides 
information on Park Board fundraising and donations which total $5602 and events and 
activities expenses total $85.53.  Side two of the report provides fund balances for the two 
Park Board accounts.  Ric reviewed the document with the Board and asked if anyone had 
questions. 
 
Dennis said there will be some expenses real soon. 
 
In response to a question from Marie, Ric said he doesn’t see the event budgets changing for 
the upcoming year. 
  

3. Status of Park Board Vacancy 
a. Position #1 Expires March 31, 2013 (Barb Nelson) 

Ric said one application was submitted and the opening continues to be published in the 
Fern Ridge Review.  Ric said Mayor Larson would like to appoint the positions at the March 
25th meeting. 
 
Marie said Carol Petty seemed interested about submitting an application for the Park 
Board vacancy.  Marie encouraged other Park Board members to follow up with Ms. Petty 
about submitting an application. 



Minutes of the Veneta Park Board 
March 6, 2013           Page 2 

 

 
In response to a question from Barb, Marie said the application can be accessed on line, on 
the City’s website or she would provide Carol with an application. 

 
b. Student Representative Recruitment 

 Ric said the two student terms end March 31st and staff would like to see Mayor Larson 
make the appointments at the March 25th Council meeting.  He said Elmira will be 
reapplying for her position.   

 
4. Park Board Annual Report to City Council 

Ric said the Bylaws call for the Park Board Annual Report to be given to the City Council the 
first of April.  Ric asked for a volunteer to complete the report and present it to the Council at 
the March 25th or April 8th Council meeting. 
  
Barb volunteered to present the annual report to the Council. 
 
Dennis said he would assist her with preparing the report. 
 

V. Event Planning  
1. Easter Egg Hunt (March 30, 2013) 

a. Status of Bunny Suit  
Dennis provided a color copy of the Easter egg poster.  He said 40 posters will be made and 
distributed on March 15th.  He said the Bunny suit arrived and it looks great.  He suggested 
funds be set aside annual to have the suit professionally cleaned if needed. 
 
Cathy made a motion for a not to exceed amount of $50 to cover the cost to have the Bunny 
suit cleaned.  Dennis seconded, all approved. 

 
In response to a question from Marie, Dennis said the bunny suit head flops around so Tressa 
wears a helmet but it limits her vision. 
 

b. Book Donations 
Cathy said Oregon Country Fair (OCF) donated $500 toward purchasing 700 publications at 
about $1.50 each from Stepping Stones Publishing.  She said Stepping Stones is also donating 
a little over $500 to cover the extra cost. 
 
In response to a question from Ric, Cathy said she made the request to OCF on behalf of the 
Veneta Park Board. 
 
Ric said this is a great idea but in the future, the Park Board needs to approve all donation 
requests prior to the request being made.  He said OCF grants many, many funding requests 
from the City and if a request is not sanctioned unanimously by the Park Board, we run the 
chance of making far too many requests to OCF. 
 
In response to a question from Barb, Cathy said Stepping Stones magazine is a multi-cultural 
essay publication which includes many stories written by children.  She said it’s not really a 
book but more of a magazine/work book.  Cathy said story books for younger children up to 
age 6 were also donated. 
 
Ric asked Cathy to bring sample magazines to City Hall to review.  He said he would like to 
ensure that the magazines are age appropriate. 

 
c. Volunteer Assignments (i.e. distribution of poster) 

Dennis said Kiwanis, Key Club, and Honor Society members are signed up for most of the 
jobs.   
 



Minutes of the Veneta Park Board 
March 6, 2013           Page 3 

 

Ric said he and a CERT volunteer will be monitoring the parking lot and story time monitors will 
be needed.   
 
Barb said she and Cal will be holding up signs directing kids to the gym for the story time. 
 
Ric said Heather from the library may need some assistance to get the kids in the right area 
and seated for story time. 
 
Dennis said someone needs to check the speaker system and make sure it’s working properly.  
He said last year kids had trouble hearing Heather during story time. He said the Honor Society 
students were asked to help with the balloons but the juniors and seniors will be in Washington 
DC the week prior to the Hunt. 
 
Braeden said he and Greta will be flying back from DC on Friday, March 29th.  He said they 
planned to help the day of the event. 
 
Dennis said Penny will help out with the balloons along with Kiwanis.  He said he may be able 
to recruit some help from the Key Club or Honor Society members and walk-in volunteers can 
fill in some of those spots.  They have 700 balloons, the Boy Scouts are bringing a helium tank, 
and Kyle will provide the canopy. 
 
Dennis said the Kiwanis will be selling doughnuts and coffee to the public at a table under 
their pop up awning on the south side of the gym.  The Kiwanis (with assistance from the 
Park Board) will also have an information/volunteer sign up table on the east side of the 
gym (next to the CERT first-aid pop up). Dennis requested the City’s large coffee pot be 
used for volunteers who upon arrival will sign in and receive a doughnut ticket to be taken 
to the other Kiwanis table on the south side of the gym.  Exact placement of tables will be 
partially dictated by weather however, all tables will be under cover. There will be no tables 
set up on the west side of the gym as people leave.  
 
Ric asked if the Park Board will have an informational table and display the banner.  He said he 
will man the parking lot and Craig will man the gate and funnel people to the right areas. 
 
Dennis said balloons and tooth brushes will be handed out as kids exit the hunt but he’s not 
sure when the books and coloring sheets will be handed out.  
 
After a brief discussion, it was the consensus of the Board that there will be no separate Park 
Board table; to consolidate the handouts, and place the Park Board banner on the chain linked 
fence.  All sponsor information will be provided at the Kiwanis volunteer signup/information 
table.   It was agreed that a volunteer would insert a coloring page into each book prior to the 
books being handed out.   
 
Dennis asked that all volunteers make sure to sign up so he knows that all positions are being 
taken care of. 
 
The next subcommittee meeting will be March 15th at 4:00 p.m. at City Hall. 
 

2. Earth/Arbor Day Event with Veneta Elementary (April 12, 2013) 
a. Committee Volunteers 

  Marie said 14 presenters have confirmed their participation in the event at Veneta 
Elementary on April 12th, from 12 to 2:00 p.m.  Set up will begin at 11:00 a.m.  There will be 
a minimum of 319 kids including 4th & 5th graders.   

 
Marie said the Kindergarten through 3rd grade students will be brought through the stations 
20 kids at a time.  She said the raptors exhibit was eliminated but Kay secured the Army 



Minutes of the Veneta Park Board 
March 6, 2013           Page 4 

 

Corps of Engineers to bring a wildlife and turtle presentation to the 4th and 5th grade 
classrooms.  Pony Gilbert will have his bee exhibit. 
 
In response to a question from Ric, Kay said the Army Corps of Engineers will have a 
science project on display which will be a bicycle that when pedaled runs a blender to make 
juice.  
 
In response to a question from Ric, Marie said she hasn’t heard anything about Elmira 
Elementary students attending the event nor did Olivia Johnson, Veneta Elementary 
principal offer any details on their participation.  
 
Ric said he spoke with Superintendent Friedrich about Elmira students being bussed over 
to Veneta for the event and he will follow up with this matter. 
 

b. Construction of Pine Cones 
Marie suggested they make another 50 bird feeders for younger siblings for a total of 400.  
 
Barb said she hasn’t contacted Territorial Seed Co. for the seed bags but will follow up 
otherwise they could use zip lock bags. 
 
It was the consensus of the Park Board to assemble the bird feeder bags after the April 3rd 
Park Board meeting.  Volunteers should be asked to arrive at 5:45 p.m. after the meeting. 

 
In response to a question from Barb, Marie said Garden Club members would be working 
at the seed planting station from 11:30 to 2:00 p.m. 
 
Marie said last year they ran out of potting soil for the seed planting so she would like to 
ask that the Park Board add another $40 to the budget to purchase potting soil.   
 
Marie motioned to approve if necessary that the Park Board purchase 4 bags of potting 
soil, Dennis seconded, all approved. 
 
Barb will be volunteering for the event and she will check to see if the Garden Club would 
like to participate in this year’s event.  She cannot attend the next Garden Club meeting on 
March 9th in Noti.  She said she sent the Club members an email but has not heard from 
anyone.  She will let the Club know about the event and when setup is. 
 
Marie said Kay also made a great poster. 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to remove the Easter Egg Hunt posters and replace 
them with the Earth Day posters after April 1st.  
 
Ric said Lisa and Kay are working on the public service announcement for publishing in the 
Fern Ridge Review and the reader board at the fire station. 

 
VI. Next Meeting – April 3, 2013 

Ric provided Barb with a plaque and a plant thanking her for her service to the Park Board and the 
City of Veneta.   
 
Barb said she has really enjoyed working with this group of people. 
  
Dennis motioned to adjourned, Penny seconded, all approved, meeting closed at 5:40 p.m. 


